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Docket No. 70-7001, Certificate No. GDP-1
Response to Apparent Violations in Inspection Report No. 70-7001/2012-005; EA-12-235

A Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) letter dated February 11, 2013, transmitted NRC
Inspection Report Number 70-7001/2012-005 which discussed six apparent violations being
considered for escalated enforcement. The apparent violations involved alleged failures to
properly manage Process Gas Leak Detector (PGLD) devices, including the failure to maintain
control of the devices, perform leak testing, perform inventories, perform surveys, maintain the
required radioactive material labeling, and improper waste shipments. The United States
Enrichment Corporation’s (USEC) Response to the subject apparent violations is provided in
Enclosure 1. USEC is denying all of the apparent violations. Certain relevant supporting
documents are provided in Enclosure 2. There are no new commitments in this Response.

Sincerely,

Steven R. Penrod
Vice President Enrichment Operations
United States Enrichment Corporation
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cc: NRC Regional Administrator, Region 11
NRC Senior Resident Inspector, PGDP
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UNITED STATES ENRICHMENT CORPORATION
RESPONSE TO APPARENT VIOLATIONS IN
INSPECTION REPORT NO. 70-7001/2012-00S; EA-12-23S

Provided below is the United States Enrichment Corporation’s (USEC) Response to the
six Apparent Violations (AVs) contained in the above-referenced Inspection Report (IR).

Background

Before addressing each of the six AVs, USEC would like to provide the following brief
background. The AVs all involve matters associated with Process Gas Leak Detectors
(PGLDs) at the Paducah Gaseous Diffusion Plant (Paducah). The Inspection Report
refers to approximately 4,800 of certain of these devices at the Paducah plant, and five
separate models: three low voltage models; and two high voltage models. See IR Report
Details at pages 8 and 12, respectively. The low voltage models contain 0.8 microcuries
of Americium-241 (Am-241) and are common home use-type smoke detectors, which
can be purchased by any person at wholesale and retail outlets throughout the United
States. These devices are not subject to NRC licensing requirements, and it is USEC’s
understanding that they are not the subject of any of the six AVs.

The two high voltage models in USEC’s possession at Paducah are Pyrotronics, Inc.
models F5B and F3/5A, each with an activity of 80 microcuries of Am-241. It is USEC’s
understanding that these are the devices that are the subject of the AVs cited in the IR.

The IR contains a lengthy history of issues being raised about USEC’s use and
disposition of PGLDs. USEC has generally chosen not to discuss the details of that
history in this Response, and instead to focus on what it now believes are the fundamental
and dispositive legal principles that govern the resolution of the six AVs. The most
fundamental of those principles is that USEC’s possession, use and transfer of the PGLDs
is exempt from NRC regulation. On the basis of those principles, USEC is hereby,
respectfully, denying all six AVs,

In addition, each of the AVs states that it is or could be determined to be safety
significant. Because USEC is denying each of the AVs, it is not responding to this aspect
of the AVs in detail (except for AV2 regarding transportation). However, as we discuss,
the NRC has made generic determinations that the PGLDs in question are exempt from
licensing and regulation after initial distribution.

Furthermore, the NRC “systematically” revisited and reanalyzed the safety of its
byproduct (and source) material exemptions in 2001 in NUREG-1717, “Systematic
Radiological Assessment of Exemptions for Source and Byproduct Materials,” including
the 10 CFR § 30.20 exemption. In doing so, the NRC stated, among other things, that it
intended to “provide an assessment upon which the NRC can review and examine the
radiological impact of current exemptions and determine if regulatory actions may be
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needed for ensuring public health and safety.” NUREG-1717, Executive Summary at
page xxi. The NRC used dose calculation methodology of the International Commission
on Radiological Protection, examined normal life cycle as well as accident and misuse
scenarios (id.), and noted that between 1971 and 1986, “92 million [ionization chamber
smoke detectors] containing a total of 320 Ci of **' Am were sold in the United States.”
NUREG-1717 at page 2-217. No change in regulatory requirements was recommended
and the relevant exemption remains in place today.
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Restatement of Apparent Violation 1

1. “Loss of Control of Radioactive Material (AV 70-7001/2012-005-01)

The inspectors identified an AV of 10 CFR 20.1802 for the failure to control or maintain
constant surveillance of the licensed material in the PGLD devices. As a result of the
failure to maintain control or constant surveillance of the devices, on August 22, 2011,
the certificate holder lost control of twelve PGLD devices each containing 80 uCi of
Am-241 (960 uCi total). The certificate holder unknowingly shipped the devices in
commerce to their waste processor who identified the radioactive material.

The inspectors concluded that the certificate holder’s failure to control or maintain
constant surveillance of licensed material contained in the PGLD devices that
unknowingly left the plant site in a waste shipment to be an AV. The AV could be
determined to be of regulatory and safety significance because the aggregate quantity of
the Am-241 was greater than 1000 times the quantity specified in Appendix C of 10 CFR
20 (see NRC Enforcement Policy Section 6.7.c.10.(a) for additional information). Also,
the deficiency can be determined to be safety significant because if the failure to control
the PGLD devices throughout the site is left uncorrected, a more significant safety
concern could exist, and have the potential to allow the continued inadvertent and
unknowing disposal of the Am-241 sealed sources.”

USEC Response

USEC denies this AV on the following basis: The AV cites USEC for failure to comply
with 10 CFR § 20.1802 “Control of material not in storage.” 10 CFR § 20.1001(a) states,
in part, that Part 20 establishes “standards for protection against ionizing radiation
resulting from activities conducted under licenses issued by the Nuclear Regulatory
Commission.” Emphasis added. 10 CFR § 20.1001(b) states, in part, that “[i]t is the
purpose of the regulations in this part to control the receipt, possession,. use, transfer, and
disposal of licensed material....” Emphasis added. In addition, 10 CFR § 20.1802 (the
regulation specifically cited in the AV) states that a licensee shall control and maintain
constant surveillance of “licensed material” that is in a controlled or unrestricted area and
that is not in storage.

While 10 CFR § 20.1003 defines a “License” as “a license issued under the regulations in
parts 30 through 36, 39, 40, 50, 60, 61, 63, 70, or 72 of this chapter,” section 20.1002 also
applies Part 20 “in accordance with 10 CFR 76.60 to persons required to obtain a
certificate of compliance...under part 76 of this chapter.” Under this regulation, USEC
is, of course, subject to Part 20, in the same manner as an NRC “licensee.” The Paducah
certificate of compliance is the equivalent of a license for this purpose. However, under
section 20.1001(a), Part 20 does not apply to “activities [not] conducted under a license”
or certificate. Under section 20.1001(b), Part 20 does not apply to the receipt,
possession, use, transfer or disposal of non-“licensed material.” And under the specific
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regulation against which the AV was cited (section 20.1802), the control and surveillance
requirements only apply to “licensed material.”

As discussed below, the 12 PGLDs (which were all either F5B or F3/5A high voltage 80
microcurie models) were not, and did not contain, “licensed material” authorized under a
general or specific license, and their shipment to the waste processor was not an “activity
conducted under licenses” as contemplated by section 20.1001(a). Instead, USEC’s
possession and use of the PGLDs were exempt from NRC regulation and licensing
requirements.

In a Federal Register notice entitled ‘“Notice of Exemption of Fire Detection Units” dated
November 26, 1969 (34 Fed. Reg. 18,870), the U.S. Atomic Energy Commission (AEC)
stated that:

Models FSA, F3.5 (formerly F3.5A), and F6 fire detection
devices containing americium 241, distributed by
Pyrotronics, Inc., prior to the issuance of AEC License No.
29-08864-04E on August 28, 1969 which authorized the
distribution of these devices to persons exempt from AEC
licensing requirements have been found to meet the safety
criteria...for gas and aerosol detectors containing
byproduct materials for use under the class exemption in §
30.20.... These devices were previously distributed under
AEC License No. GL-133 prior to the promulgation of §
30.20. However, for the purposes of the exemption in §
30.20, such license [i.e., the distributor’s General License
GL-133] shall be deemed to have been issued under §
32.26.... [Plersons [who] receive, possess, use, transfer,
export, own or acquire [such] devices...are hereby deemed
exempt from the requirements for [an AEC] license....
Emphasis added.

A copy of this Notice is provided in Enclosure 2.

The 12 devices in question were either Pyrotronics’ models F5B or F3/5A. (See
“Background” section above). The above-quoted Notice of Exemption explicitly
exempted from AEC (and thereby NRC) regulation the Paducah F3/5A devices
distributed prior to August 28, 1969." The Notice did not mention the model F5B devices
possessed by USEC.

However, in a separate “Notice of Exemption of Fire Detection Units; Correction” dated
April 11, 1970 (35 Fed. Reg. 6018), the AEC stated that the prior Exemption Notice was

! The Notice referred to model F3.5A but was intended to refer to model F3/5A. See below.
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“incorrect in that it omitted Model F5B and referred to Model F3.5 (formerly F3.5A)
instead of Model F3/5.” This corrected Exemption Notice explicitly included within the
exemption, both models F5B and F3/5A (the models in USEC’s possession) as well as
other models distributed prior to the August 28, 1969, issuance of specific license 29-
08864-04E to Pyrotronics. A copy of this corrected notice is provided in Enclosure 2.

In short, any of the 12 PGLDs that may have been distributed by Pyrotronics prior to
August 28, 1969, are exempt devices; their receipt, possession, use and transfer by USEC
is not subject to a general or a specific license; and they do not constitute “licensed
material”, nor are they subject to Part 20.

Apart from the 1969 and 1970 Exemption Notices discussed above, these devices are also
exempt from licensing under current NRC regulations. In particular, 10 CFR § 30.20
“Gas and aerosol detectors containing byproduct material” states, in relevant part,

(a) Except for persons who manufacture, process, produce,
or initially transfer for sale or distribution gas and aerosol
detectors containing byproduct material, any person is
exempt from the requirements for a license...to the extent
that such person receives, possesses, uses, transfers, owns,
or acquires byproduct material in gas or aerosol detectors
designed to protect life or property, [from fires and airborne
hazards], and manufactured, processed, produced, or
initially transferred in accordance with a specific license
issued under § 32.26. Emphasis added.

The PGLDs that are the subject of this AV are “gas and aerosol detectors” in fact (and
were explicitly recognized as such by the AEC in the 1969 Notice of Exemption as well).
Furthermore, they were designed to protect life or property from fires or airborne hazards
(i.e., UF6 hazards). In addition, their distribution under GL-133 was “deemed” by the
AEC “to have been issued under § 32.26....”

With respect to any of the 12 PGLDs that may have been distributed affer August 28,
1969, AEC specific license 29-08864-04E explicitly and directly authorized Pyrotronics,
pursuant to the specific licensing requirements of 10 CFR § 32.26, to distribute such
devices “to persons exempt from the requirements for a license.” This specific license
included models F5B and F3/5A. See AEC License No. 29-08864-04E at 1, provided in
Enclosure 2.

In short, the 12 PGLDs containing Am-241 are not licensed material; USEC’s possession
and use is exempt from the NRC licensing requirements; and as such is not subject to Part
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20 in general or 10 CFR § 20.1802 in particular. For the reasons set forth above, USEC
denies this AV.?

I Reason for the Violation
USEC has denied the AV.

II. Corrective Actions Taken
None.

III. Corrective Actions to Be Taken
None.
IV.  Date of Full Compliance

USEC is currently in full compliance.

We note that the NRC Inspection Report states that some of the devices “have labeling to indicate
their restricted use under a general license or under an NRC specific license. Many of the PGLD
devices have the following warnings and prohibitions on the label:

Generally Licensed by Section 30.21(c) 10 CFR 30
Manufactured and Distributed by Pyrotronics, Inc. Pursuant to
AEC License GL133. Do not transfer, abandon or dispose of
this device except by return to Pyrotronics, Inc. or transfer to
other specifically licensed persons....”

The purpose of this reference in the Inspection Report is not clear. However, it does not affect the
result reached above because: (1) Pyrotronics, not USEC, was the general licensee; and (2) USEC
is “exempt” as previously described.
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Restatement of Apparent Violation 2

2. “Improper Waste Shipment of Radioactive Material (AV 70-7001/2012-005-02)

The inspectors identified an AV of Title 10 Part 71, 49 CFR 171, Subpart A (Section
171.2(e)); and 49 CFR 172, Subpart C (Sections 172.202(a) and 171.202(b), and
172.203(d)), Subpart D (Section 172.302(a)), and Subpart E (Section 172.403) for the
improper shipment of the PGLD devices to a waste processing facility. On August 22,
2011, the certificate holder improperly shipped radioactive material in 12 PGLD devices
each containing 80 uCi of Am-241 (960 uCi total) as an exempted package in commerce.
Specifically, the package was not properly classed as regulated radioactive material, was
not described in the shipping papers to denote the material and activity, and was not
properly marked and labeled.

The inspectors determined the certificate holder’s failure to account for the Am-241
radioactive material in the shipment to be safety significant because shipments of
improperly classed material, improper shipping papers, improperly marked and labeled
containers could preclude emergency responders to take adequate actions in case of
emergency. The radioactive material was offered for transportation in commerce that
was not properly classed, described, marked, and labeled as required or authorized by
applicable requirements or an exemption from 49 CFR Parts 172-174. (see NRC
Enforcement Policy Section 6.8.d.4 for additional information).”

USEC Response

USEC denies this AV on the following basis: The AV cites USEC for failure to comply
with 10 CFR Part 71 generally, without specifying a particular regulation within Part 71.
However, the AV presumably is for failure to comply with 10 CFR § 71.5(a), which
requires each licensee who publicly transports licensed material to “comply with the
applicable requirements of [various] DOT regulations” in 49 CFR. Indeed, the AV cites
the specific DOT regulations of concern to the NRC. The AV is based upon the alleged
“improper shipment” of the same 12 PGLDs discussed in AV 1 above to a waste
processing facility on August 22, 2011,

The NRC may not cite a licensee or certificate holder for failure to meet a DOT
regulation unless the DOT regulation has been incorporated by reference into the NRC
requirements, as 10 CFR § 71.5(a) does. Thus, the AV must be based on a
noncompliance with NRC, not purely DOT, requirements. As discussed below, the event
in question did not violate the referenced NRC requirements.
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First, under 10 CFR § 71.0(c), the regulations in Part 71 as a whole, only apply to:

any licensee authorized by specific or general license...to
receive, possess, use, or transfer licensed material [under
certain circumstances]. Emphasis added.

Under this provision, if a licensee is authorized to receive, possess, use or transfer
radioactive material without obtaining a general or specific license, then any such
activities are not subject to 10 CFR Part 71 at all. As discussed further below, the 12
PGLDs in question are not “licensed material” authorized under a general or specific
license, and USEC’s possession, use and transfer is “exempt” from NRC regulation and
Part 71 in particular.

Furthermore, 10 CFR § 71.14 “Exemption for low-level materials” states, in relevant
part:

(b) A licensee is exempt from all requirements of this part,

other than §§ 71.5 and 71.88,® with respect to shipment or

carriage of the following packages, provided the packages

do not contain any fissile material, or the material is

exempt from classification as fissile material under § 71.15:

(1) A package that contains no more than a Type A
quantity of radioactive material.... Emphasis added.

Based on 10 CFR § 71.0(c) discussed above, this provision is not applicable here.
However, if it was, the packages referenced in the AV did not contain any fissile
material (only Am-241), and did not contain more than a Type A quantity of radioactive
material. Thus, this shipment was exempt from Part 71 under 10 CFR § 70.14 as well,
with the possible exception of 10 CFR § 71.5 (assuming for the sake of argument that
Part 71 applies at all).

As for 10 CFR § 71.5, that regulation applies to each licensee (or certificate holder) “who
transports licensed material” under certain circumstances, and it incorporates by
reference the various DOT regulations with respect to such a shipment. Emphasis added.
In this case, however, the 12 PGLDs did not constitute “licensed material,” and thus 10
CFR § 71.5 does not apply.

Section 71.88, relating to air transport of plutonium, is not relevant here.
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10 CFR § 71.4 “Definitions” defines “Licensed material” as:

byproduct, source, or special nuclear material received,
possessed, used, or transferred under a general or specific
license issued by the Commission pursuant to the
regulations in this chapter.

As mentioned before, the 12 PGLDs were not received, possessed, used, or transferred
under either a general or specific NRC license. Instead, their possession, use and transfer
is “exempt” from NRC regulation.

The PGLDs were distributed by Pyrotronics, Inc. either: (1) prior to August 28, 1969 (in
which case they were covered by the corrected Exemption Notice discussed earlier); or
(2) after August 28, 1969 (in which case they were exempt under the specific Pyrotronics
license issued on that date).

In short, the 12 PGLDs containing Am-241 are not licensed material; are exempt from
the NRC licensing requirements as discussed above; and as such USEC is not subject to
Part 71 or to NRC enforcement action for alleged violations of DOT requirements
incorporated into the NRC regulations by reference. For the reasons set forth above,
USEC denies this AV.

As mentioned in the “Background” section above, despite USEC’s denial of this AV, it
believes it is important, in this particular instance, to more specifically address the NRC’s
statement that the AV was “safety significant because [the manner of shipment] could
preclude emergency responders to take adequate actions in case of emergency.”

The shipment was properly and prominently placarded in compliance with U. S. DOT
requirements with Class 7 Radioactive Materials placards displayed on the front, back
and both sides of the trailer. Emergency responders would have seen the placards and
recognized that precautions due to the presence of radioactive material should be taken,
in the event a transportation event occurred. The shipment arrived at its destination
without incident.

If the vehicle had been involved in an over-the-road emergency incident, upon seeing a
Radioactive Materials Class 7 placard, first responders would have referred to the “U. S.
DOT 2012 Emergency Response Guidebook (ERG)” which is the standard hazardous
materials guide for U. S. on-scene responders. The ERG provides response protocols and
initial isolation zone (IIZ) guidance for radiological and non-radiological hazardous
materials.

In most municipal, county, parish and state jurisdictions, upon recognizing the
involvement of radioactive materials in an incident, first responders i.e. fire departments
or law enforcement agencies will contact a local or regional hazardous materials team,
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the state radiation emergency team and/or the U. S. DOE Radiological Assistance
Program for advanced support activities. Usually, local first responders will handle a
radioactive material emergency incident by establishing an IIZ around the vehicle,
evacuating people residing in the 11Z, and then waiting for further guidance from subject
matter experts on the aforementioned special radiological response teams. This approach
prevents the exposure and involvement of on-scene emergency responders to any
hazardous or unsafe scenarios.

Furthermore, Am-241 encased within a PGLD does not pose a significant hazard to
emergency response personnel. The 12 PGLD devices contained a total of 960
microcuries. Commercial ground shipping companies regulated by DOT under 49 CFR §
173.424 permit shipment of much greater amounts as “excepted packages/limited
quantities” of radioactive materials. For example, the United Parcel Service (UPS)
allows a maximum activity per package of 27,000 microcuries, with a maximum activity
per smoke alarm of 270 microcuries. The shipment must be marked as
“UN2911.” Clearly, the USEC shipment of 12 PGLD devices of 80 microcuries each,
with a total of 960 microcuries of activity (less than 1 millicurie) did not pose any
potential significant safety hazard to emergency responders.

Finally, in NUREG-1717 section 2.15.4.4 titled “Present Exemption Analysis for Smoke
Detectors: Accidents and Misuse,” the NRC considered a transportation fire scenario
involving a typical shipment of 7,200 smoke detectors containing a total of 7,200
microcuries. A release factor of 0.01% was assumed for the Am-241 source foils based
on NUREG/CR-0403 and NUREG/CP-0001. The NRC concluded that an on-scene
firefighter wearing a respirator while combating this fire scenario would receive an
effective dose equivalent (EDE) of 0.003mSv (or 0.3 millirems). Therefore, a postulated
USEC shipping incident involving 960 microcuries of Am-241 would not pose any
unreasonable hazard or any safety significant situation to an emergency responder.

In summary, an emergency involving the August 22, 2011, USEC shipment would not
have posed any undue, unusual or significant safety hazard to emergency responders in
the various jurisdictions of transit. Responders would have used normal U. S. DOT ERG
protocols with the support of local, state and federal radiological hazmat teams to bring a
safe and environmentally sound resolution to the postulated incident.

1. Reason for the Violation
USEC has denied the AV.
II. Corrective Actions Taken

None.



IV.

IV.

Corrective Actions to Be Taken
None
Date of Full Compliance

USEC is currently in full compliance.
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Restatement of Apparent Violation 3

3. “Failure to Perform Leak Testing of the PGLD Devices (AV 70-7001/2012-005-03)

The inspectors identified an AV of 10 CFR 20.1101 and Section 5.3, “Radiation
Protection,” of the SAR for the failure to perform leakage testing on alpha emitting
sources (e.g., Am-241) of activity greater than 10 uCi. Specifically, the certificate holder
failed to test for leakage approximately 3,500 devices in use. The certificate holder
reported no record of ever having performed leak testing of the devices.

The inspectors determined the certificate holder’s failure to perform leak testing of the
radioactive sources in the PGLD devices to be an AV. Specifically, the PGLD devices
were not leak tested for Am-241 contamination. The AV could be determined to be of
safety significance because of the large number of PGLD devices that have not been leak
tested for an extended period. In addition, since Am-241 contamination has been
detected in the waste water from the refurbishment and cleaning processes, indicating
that some of the PGLD devices could be leaking. The leaking sources were not identified
and removed from service (see the NRC Enforcement Policy Section 6.7.d.4, for
additional information).”

USEC Response

For the same reasons discussed above, USEC denies this AV. The PGLDs in USEC’s
possession are exempt from NRC regulation, and therefore not subject to leak testing

requirements derived from the general “Radiation protection programs” regulation — 10
CFR § 20.1101.

Furthermore, the AV generally references Section 5.3 of the Paducah SAR. Section
5.3.4.2 of the SAR addresses, among other things, leak testing of sealed sources.
Whether or not the PGLDs are considered “sealed sources,” any such leak testing
requirement would only apply to a non-exempt PGLD. The exemptions discussed above
remove the exempt PGLDs from the ambit of this section of the SAR. Thus, there is no
noncompliance with the leak test provisions of Section 5.3 of the SAR.

I Reason for the Violation
USEC has denied the AV.
II. Corrective Actions Taken

None.



IV.

Corrective Actions to Be Taken

None.

Date of Full Compliance

USEC is currently in full compliance.
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Restatement of Apparent Violation 4

4. “Failure to Perform Inventory of the PGLD Devices (AV 70-7001/2012-005-04

The inspectors identified an AV of 10 CFR 20.1101 and Section 6.2.4 of the certificate
holder’s procedure CP2-HP-RP1046, ‘Sealed Radioactive Source Control,” for the failure
to perform physical inventory of radioactive sources contained in the PGLD devices for
approximately 4,800 devices.

The inspectors determined the certificate holder’s failure to perform physical inventory to
account for the radioactive sources in the PGLD devices to be an AV. The certificate
holder has not maintained records or listing documents to identify each PGLD device by
unique identifier or serial number. In addition, the certificate holder did not know how
many PGLD devices were actually possessed and did not know the number of devices in
various locations throughout the plant site, for approximately a total 4,800 devices,
including devices in use and storage. The AV could be determined to be safety
significant because failure to perform physical inventories could be a contributor to the
lack of controls resulting in AV 70 7001/2012-005-01 described above (see NRC
Enforcement Policy Section 6.7.d.3 for additional information).”

USEC Response

For the same reasons discussed above, USEC denies this AV. The PGLDs in USEC’s
possession are exempt from NRC regulation, and therefore not subject to the physical

inventory requirements derived from the general “Radiation protection programs”
regulation — 10 CFR § 20.1101.

Furthermore, the AV references Section 6.2.4 of USEC procedure CP2-HP-RP1046
“Sealed Radioactive Source Control.” Section 6.2.4 requires, among other things, that
“[t]he sealed radioactive source custodian shall perform [certain inventories] at least
every six months....” Emphasis in original. Again, whether or not the PGLDs are
considered “sealed sources,” any such inventory requirement would only apply to a non-
exempt PGLD. The exemptions discussed above remove the exempt PGLDs from the
ambit of this procedure. Thus, there is no noncompliance with the Section 6.2.4
inventory requirements of the procedure.

1. Reason for the Violation
USEC has denied the AV.
1L Corrective Actions Taken

None.



VL

IV.

Corrective Actions to Be Taken
None.
Date of Full Compliance

USEC is currently in full compliance.
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Restatement of Apparent Violation 5

5. “Failure to Perform Surveys to Assess Radiological Hazards Associated with PGLD
Maintenance Activities (AV 70-7001/2012-005-05)

The inspectors identified an AV of 10 CFR 20.1501 for the failure to perform surveys to
assure compliance with limits for worker radiation exposure to Am-241 and to assess the
radiological hazards associated with installation and removal, maintenance, cleaning,
refurbishment, and the testing/calibration of PGLD devices. Specifically, the certificate
holder did not conduct radiation level surveys and contamination surveys in the
workbench areas and of the equipment handled in the disassembly, maintenance, cleaning
and washing, refurbishment, and testing and calibration of the PGLD devices to
demonstrate the compliance with the dose limits of 10 CFR 20.

The inspectors determined that the certificate holder’s failure to perform work support
surveys for the PGLD maintenance activities could be safety significant because PGLD
devices have not been tested for leakage and could be leaking contamination.
Specifically, Am-241 has been detected in the waste water from the maintenance and
cleaning of PGLD devices (see the NRC Enforcement Policy Section 6.7.d.3 for
additional information).”

USEC Response
For the same reasons discussed above, USEC denies this AV. USEC’s possession and

use of the PGLDs are exempt from NRC regulation, and therefore not subject to the
survey requirements set forth in 10 CFR § 20.1501.

L Reason for the Violation
USEC has denied the AV.

II. Corrective Actions Taken
None.

I11. Corrective Actions to Be Taken
None.
IV.  Date of Full Compliance

USEC is currently in full compliance.
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Restatement of Apparent Violation 6

6. “Failure to Label Several PGLD Devices (AV 70-7001/2012-005-06)

The inspectors identified an AV of 10 CFR 20.1904 for the failure to ensure several
PGLD devices were properly labeled with the radioactive material warnings and
prohibitions and statements to provide sufficient information to permit individuals
handling or using the devices to take precautions to avoid or minimize exposure.
Specifically, several PGLD devices did not bear a label that identified the Am-241
radionuclide or the quantity of radioactivity, nor did it otherwise bear the words
‘CAUTION, RADIOACTIVE MATERIAL,” or ‘DANGER, RADIOACTIVE
MATERIAL.’

The inspectors determined the certificate holder’s failure to ensure the PGLD devices
were labeled to identify the radiologic hazards and precautions to be an AV of
10 CFR 20.1904. The AV could be safety significant because without the label, PGLD
devices have no markings to indicate that the devices contain radioactive materials that
require special handling. In addition, the certificate holder did not know how many
PGLD devices were missing the labeling. The absence of the labeling of the PGLD
devices, if left uncorrected, could contribute to a more significant safety concern because
failure to label devices could contribute to the inadvertent disposal or mishandling of
licensed materials similar to the circumstance identified in AV 70 7001/2012-005-01
described above (see NRC Enforcement Policy Section 6.7.d for additional
information).”

USEC Response

For the same reasons discussed above, USEC denies this AV. The PGLDs in USEC’s
possession are exempt from NRC regulation, and therefore not subject to the labeling
requirements set forth in 10 CFR § 20.1904. Section 20.1904 explicitly applies only to
containers of “licensed material.”

L. Reason for the Violation
USEC has denied the AV.

1L Corrective Actions Taken
None.

I11. Corrective Actions to Be Taken

None.
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IV.  Date of Full Compliance

USEC is currently in full compliance.
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UNITED STATES ENRICHMENT CORPORATION (USEC)
RESPONSE TO APPARENT VIOLATIONS IN EA-12-235

Supporting Materials

1. 34 Fed. Reg. 18,870 “Notice of Exemption of Fire Detection Units,” dated
November 26, 1969

2, 35 Fed. Reg. 6018 “Notice of Exemption of Fire Detection Units; Correction,”
‘ dated April 11, 1970

3. AEC License No. 29-08864-04E, Pyrotronics Incorporated
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Docket No. 16617) mmu}ﬂyﬂcﬂmethodmmmg\g %fesofcm:fmﬂa eﬂeoﬂveratemhud
NORTH CAROLINA POINTS SERVICE or determining residues of or sales of natural gas under Com=
I:vzsﬂemon herbicids {5 a gas chromatographic pro- mission Jurisdiction, as set tprm in Ap-
cedure using & microco! detector pendix A hereof.
*  Notice of Oral Argument with a sulfur-specific titration cel. - The mpm:n‘ W rates =nnd
Dated: November 19, 1869, chaxges may be unjust, 8, un~
» Notice is herebvﬂven wmnz&: oV e og:’ g aiary: o preferentini, o
1858, a3 nmended. that oral argument y . erwise upla
in the sbovo-entitied matter 1s aisigned A7 0 Assoclate Compadoner ° The Commission fnds: It Is in the
10 be heard by the Board on December 17, - pubuo interest and consistent with the
196, &t 10:00 .m., 058, in Room 1027, [PB. Doo. 65-140l¢; Filed, Nov. 28, 1063; Natural Gas Act that the
Universal Building, 8:45 am.] exter hearings regarding ths law-

, 1825 Connectiout
Avenue NW., Washington, D.C.
Dated at Washingten, D.C., Novem-
ber 20, 1969.
{seaL) Rapit L. Wissg,
Assoclate Chief Examiner.
[FR. Doc. 60-14035; Piled, Nov. 25, 1969;
0:46 aan.)

.
~

DEPARTHENT OF HEALTH,
EDUCATION, AND SELFARE

Food and Drug Administration
ECONOMICS LABORATORY, INC.

Notice of Filing. of Petition Ragarding
Food Additives

Punmb to the provisions of the Fred-
Food, Drug, end Cosmetic Act (s60.
m(b) (6), 72 Stat, 1786; 21 US.C, 848
(b)(a)) notico 18 given that o petition
AP OH2454) has beem filled by Eto-
nomm Labormry. Ing., Osborn Baild-
ing, St. Paul, Minn, 85103, proposing that
$ m.am Sanitizing solutions (31 CFR
121.2547) be amended to provide for the

ATOMIC ENERGY COMMISSION

PYROTRONICS, INC.

Notice of Exemptlon of Fira Detection  tions

Units

Models PSA, P35 (formerly P3SA),
and P6 fire dotection mnlnc

AEC requiremen
found to mest the safety oriteria ast torth
in § 82.29 of 10 CFR Par} 32 {or ges and
aerosol deuom containing byproduct
materials for uso undar the class exemp-
tion In uozoor 1ocmrmso.nese
devices were previously distributed under
AEC License No. 38 prior to the
promulgation of § 30.30. Xowever, fox the
purposes of the exemption in § 30.20, such
Hoenss shall be deemed to have Been iz
saed under uszza, 10 CFR Part 32. To

the extent that perscns in non-Agree- 804
acturers,

ment States other than manuf!

safe uss of & solution containing
tristhanolamine ootyl sulfate jodine
complex and components generally reo-
oguized as safe as & santiiring solution
:& !&c’-pm&lu equipment and uten-
ta the imitation that such solutions wiil
provide nol more thnn 25 parts per mfl~
lon titratable

L Dated: Novambar 18, 1969.

R. B, Dvacaw,
V' Adcting Associate Commissioner
for Compliance.

[PXR. Doc, 69-14013; Filed, Nov. 26, 1965;
8:45 oam.]

N
“GEIGY CHEMICAL CORP.

Notice of Filing of Petition Regarding
Pesticide Chemlw s

Pumuant to zhc nmv!dans of the Fed~
eral Food, Drug, aud Cosmetic Act (seo.
408(d) (1), 68 Stat. ¥12; 21 US.C, 346a
@), Totice s given that a petition
(PP msos) has been flled hy Celgy
Chemical Corp., Ardsley, N.¥, 10503, pro-
posing. the estehilchment of tolerances
(21 CFR 120288) for residues of
the herbloide 2-ethylamino-4-isopropyla-
rino-6-methylthio-s-&riazine in or on
the raw agricuitural commodities corn
forage and fodder at 0.6 part per milion
and corn grein (kernels plus cob with
husks removed) at 0.23 part per mililon,

or importers of
such devices, receive, Possess, use, transg-
fer, export, own or acquire dovices manu-
factured in acoordance with that lioense,
Mmherobydeemedmﬂmmm
requiremsnts for o licenso set forth in
BecuonslolthsMomlnErmyActo:
1854, as amended, and from AEC regula~

. tlons In 10 CFR Parts 20 and 30-36.

s Dated 'at Bethesdn, Md., November 18,

For the Atomic Energy Commission.
J. A. NloBRIDE,

Director,
Diviston of Muterials Licensing,
[FR. Doc, 69-14033; Fled, Nov, 35, 1669;
846 aun.}

FEDERAL POWER COLASSION

{Docket No. RI70-469, ote.]
HUMBLE OlL & REFINING CO. ET Al.

Order Providing for Heaning on end
Suspension of Proposed Changes in
Rates, and Allowing Rate Changes
To Become Effective Subject to
Refund *

' Noveaszr, 14, 1969,
The respondents named hereln have
fled proposed changes in rates and
lnoumhmmmumrmﬂnsoxdupcu
of the several WAtters nex

the supplements herein bo suspended and
their use be deferred as ordered below.
The Commission orders:
(A) Under the Nahmllau Act, par-

and procedure, hearings shall be
held concerning the lawfulness of the
proposed changes. .

(B) Pending hearings and declsions
thereon, the rats supplements herein are
suspended thelr use doferred until

supplemen

by Respondents, as gst forth shall

become eftective subject to refund on the
date and n the manner herein cribed

izseance ’hal}
each. file yndar its nhove-
designated docket number with the Seo~
retary of the Commission ita t
to compily with the re-

teporting cedure re-

funding and pro
Quired by the Natural Gas Aot and
§ 1564.102 of tho yegwlations thereunder,
accompanied by & certificate showing
sorvice of coples thereof upon all pur-
chasers under the rate eoheaule lnvolved
Unless respondents are advised to
contxm within 15 dws after the nung
1 their respeciive agresments and une
dem.klnsa such agrecments and under~
s shall be deemed [ hnvo been
accep! d‘
(C) Unill otherwise ordered by the

position of these procesdings or expira-
tion of the suspension period.

(D) Notices of intarvention or petl-
tions to intervans may be filed with the
Federal Power Commission, Washington,
D.C. 20426, in accordance with the rules
of practice and procedure (13 CFR 1.8
and 1.837(f)) on or hefore January 1,
19%70.

By the Commission.

£:1713) Gorpox M. GrANT,
Seoretary.

sIf an general o8
mmmérwuo.m.hummwy
MMWomduou-.M 1t will not be
nepessayy for that producer to Al an agree-
mont: and undertaking &6 herein.
In such clroumstances tho producer’s proe

ve a5
on

posed incroassd rate will becomo sZeott

FEDERAL REGISTER, VOL, 34, NO. 227-~WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 26, 1969 .

HeinOnline -- 34 Fed. Reg. 18870 1962
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ATOMIC ENERGY COMMISSION

[Dackets Nos. 50-354, 50-355]
PUBLIC SERVICE ELECTRIC AND GAS

Notice of Rocelpl of Application for
Construction Permits and Facility
Licenses

Public Service Electric and Gas Co., 80
Park Piace, Newark, N.J, 07101, pursuant
to seotion 104(b) of the Atomic Energy
Act of 1954, as amended, has fled an
application dated February 26, 1970, for
authorlzation to construct and operate
two single ayole, forced cironlation, boil-
ing water nuclear reactors on the appli~
cant’s site of approximately 530 acres
Jocated in Bordentown Township, Bur-
lington Connty, N.J. ‘The proposed site
1s situated on Newbold Island, which i3
in the Delaware River approximately §
miles south of the city Yimits of Trenton,
N.J, and appro)dmate!y 11 miles north-~
east of the Philadelphia city limits,

The proposed nuclear reactors, desig-
nated by the applicant as the Newbald
Island Nuclear Generating Station, are
each dealgned for initial operation at ap»
proximalely 8,263 megawatts (thermal)
with & net electrical output of approxi-
mately 1,088 megawatts per unit.

-A copy of the nppucaﬂon 13 avallable
for public inspection at the Commission's
Publis Document Room, 1717 K Street
NW., Washington, D,

Dated atBetbesdn. Md., thiy 34 dayot
April 1070,
For the Atomic Energy. Commission,
¥. SBcarornzs, -
Acting Dirvegtor,
Division of Reactor Licensing.
[FR, Dot 70-4416; Plled, Aps, 10, 1970;
8:48 a.m.)}

* PYROTYRONICS, INC. ‘

Notice of Exemption of Fire Detection
Units; Comrection

The Notlce of Bxemption of Fire De-
teotion Units published {n ths Prozmat
Recisrer (34 PR, 18870) on Novem-
ber 36, 1968, F.R, Doc, 69-14032, was in~
correct in that it omitted Model PSB and

- referred to Model ¥8.56 (formerly $3.5A)

instead of Model F3/5. 'This notice {8
corrected to read 23 follows:
Models F8A, F5B, F3/5A, and F6 fire

241, distributed by Pyrotronics, Inc,,
prior to the lasuance of AEC License No,
29-08664-04E on August 28, 1969, which
authorized the distribution of these de-
vices to parsons exempt from AEC licens-
ing requirements, have been found to
meet the safety oriteria seb forth in
§323%0f 10 CFR Part 32 for gas and

gexcsol deteotors contalning byproduct
mateﬂn!s for use under the class exemp-
ton. in § §0.20 of 10 CFR Pazt 80. These
devioes were previously distributed under
AEC License No. GL-133 prior o the
Ppromulgation ot § 80.20, However, for the

FEDERAL REGISTER, VOl 35, NO. 71-=SATURDAY, APRIL 13, 1970

NOTICES

purposes of the exemption in $30.20,
such nceme shsll be desmed to have
-hean lssved under § 82.26, 10 cm ?ar&
82, To the extent that persons in none
Axreemnnt States other than manufac~
TS, processors, producers, or importe
ers of such devices, recelve, possess, use,
transfer, export, own or acquire devices
manufautured in accordance with that

they axe hereby desmed exeropt lea

from the requirements for a lcense set
forth in section 81 of the Atomic Energy
Act of 185¢, as amended, and from ARG
regulations in 10 cmzram 20 and 80-36.

Dated at Bethesda, Md., April 6, 1670,
For the Atomic Energy Commisston,

r‘
Division of Materials Licensing.
JPR. Doo. 'lo-«acs, mu?, Apr. 10, 1970;

{Docket No. 50-2]

REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF
MICHIGAN

Notico of Issvance of Facllity License
Amendment

The Atomic Energy Commission (the
Comm!sslon) has issued, effective as of
he date of issuance, Ammdment No. 20
&o ici!iw ucen.se No. R~28, 88
amended. The Heense authorizes The
Regents of 'I'he University of Michigan
to possess, use and operate its Ford
Nuclear Reastor (FNR) located on the
University’s campus et Ann Arbor, Mich,,
st steady-state power levels up to a
maximura of 2 megawatts (thermal),
‘The amendment rovises the Moense to
authorise a temporary increass in the
exeess reactivity limits from 2 percent
1o 3.5 percent delta k/k to permit opera~
tion of the ¥NR for the performance of
tests to evaluate the reactivity worth of
2 safety yod which is bems developed for
possibls mture use I:ho FNR., The
amendmoent; ts the operating
power loval !or tbe tests to 100 kw, and
permits ths reactor soxam point to be
sent 128 kw.

The Commission has reviewed and
evaluated the predioted nuclear and
thermal-hydrawdic performances of the
tests and hag concluded that the pro
posed test can be performed ab & power
level of 200 kw. with reasonable assur-
ance that the health and safety of the
public will not be endangered.

The Commission has found thaf the

req

Energy Act of 1054, 83 amended (the
Act), and the Commission’s regulstions
pubushed in 10 OFR Chapter I. The
Commission has made the findings re-

. quired by the Act and the Commission's
" regulations which are set forth in the
amendment, and has concluded that the
Issuance of the amendment will not ba
common defenss and

to the comm
seourity or to the health and safely of G

the publio.
‘Within fifteen (15) days from the date
o!pubﬂcaﬁnnotﬁwnoﬁeemthem
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£nat RealsTer, the applicant may file o
request for & hearing and any person
whose interest may be affected by this

proceeding may file a petition for leave
to muwene. Requests for a hearing and
petitions to intervene shall be filed in
accordanse wlth the Commission's
“Rales of Practice” in 10 CFR Part 3. If o
request for & hearing or a mﬂum for
wve to intervens 15 filed within the time
prescribed in this notlce, the Commiasion
will issue at nolice of hearing or an
appropriate order.

For furthier detalls with respect to this
amendment, seo (1) the lcengee’s appli~
cation for Hoense awmendment dated
December 11, 1089, and (2) the amend-
ment to the facility Heenss, which m
available for pub!lc inspection at
Comumigsion’s Puhlic Dosument Rnom at
1717 H Street NW. Washngton, D.C.
Coples of item (2) above msy be ob-
tained upon request addressed to the

orgy Comalss Washing«

Atomis En fon,
tan, D.C. 20815, Attention: Director,
Division of Reactor Licensing,

Dated at Bethesda, Md., this 3d of
Py 8, 2 3d day

For the Atomic Energy Commission,

Donard J. S8KoveoLT,
Assiztant Director for Reacter
Operations, Divislon of Re-
aotor Licensing,

[FR. Doc. 70-4444; Filed, Apr, 10, 1070;
8:47 am.}

"GIVIL AERONAUTICS BOARD

[Docket No. 22401; Oader 70-4-25}
FRONTIER AIRLINES, INC.

Order Granting Temporary Suspen-
slen and Seflting Application for
Hearing

Adopted by the Civil Asronautics
Board af its office in Washington, D.C,,
on the Tth day of April 1870,

eation of Froatler Alrlines, Inc,
D G 21401, for temporaty suspension
a.ng deletion of seryice.

tanthr , filed an ap;

tlon, "Docket 21401, requesting it bs
authorized to temporarily suspend gery-
iee at Mlles City, Glendlve. Sidney, Wolt
Point, Glasgow, Havre, and Lewistown,
Mont., aud Williston, N, Dak, Frontier
also secks suspension of its authorily to
servo segment 12 of route 73' and be-
{ween Billings, Miles City, Glendive,
sldnoy, ‘Williston, and Minos of segment
1.} Further, Frontler seeks deletion of the

Sogment 13 cx Touts 73 10 "betweon the
terminat poiat Great Fulls, Moniana, tho
fntermediate points Havre, Glagsgow, \Welf
Pelnt, and Sldney, Montana, and the terminm
polncwuumn. North Dakota.”
t 7 is “Between the terminal point
:Buungn, AMontana, the Intermedinte points
Miles Otty, Glmmvo. and Sidoey, Montans,
and Williston and mnae. North Dakota, ond
terminal point Blamarck-Monden, North
D&kob." Frontior desires to rotain the Minot,
N. Dak.-Blsmarck-Mandan, N, Dak. portlon
of segraent 7. .

HoinOnline -~ 35 Fed. Reg. 6018 1970
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